
Summary Minutes
Solid Waste Management Advisory Council (SWAC)

June 12th, 2001
Battelle-Darby Creek Metro Park

1775 Darby Creek Dr.
Galloway, OH 43119

Members in Attendance:

Brad Biggs, ODOD Director’s Designee
Sally Beals, Municipalities
Mike Canfield, ODNR Director’s Designee
Arthur Haddad, Counties
Dan Harris, EPA Director’s Designee
W. Reed Madden, Counties
Steve Hill, Industrial Generators
Phil Palumbo, Joint County SWMDs
John Rininger, Jr., Municipalities
Kathy Trent, Private Solid Waste Industry

May 14th, 2001 Meeting Minutes Approved
The first order of business was to review and approve the May 14th, 2001 meeting
minutes. Mike Canfield MOVED to approve the minutes, Reed Madden SECONDED
the motion.  The minutes were approved on a voice vote.

Update on Legislative Issues
Dan Harris explained that the budget bill had been passed. DSIWM funding is fee-
based and therefore wasn’t affected by the reductions in GRF. 

The fifty cent increase in the fee for the wholesale sale of tires has been passed and
will be effective for the next ten years. The increased funding will allow the Agency to
speed up the abatement of the Kirby site and other problematic areas. Kathy Trent
verified that the increased fee would begin in July. Sally Beals asked what the total tire
fee is with the increase and Mr. Harris explained that the fee is now one dollar which is
the maximum for most states. 

In addition, the environmental bond issue (SB 3) is being focused on in the legislature
now that the budget has been passed. 

DSIWM Update
Mr. Harris announced that he had been selected for the position as the permanent
Chief of DSIWM. He described what his priorities and intentions are for the upcoming
months.

Mr. Harris said that he expects the landfill rules to be filed by June 15. A public
comment period and public hearing will follow the extensive package of rules.

A public hearing for the C&DD rules is scheduled for later this week. Mr. Canfield asked
for the time of the hearing. Ms. Trent and Mr. Harris said the hearing was scheduled for
9:30 a.m. on Thursday, June 14 at the Lazarus Government Center (EPA). 



2SWAC Summary Minutes, June 12, 2001

Mr. Harris also explained that there would be an interested party draft for Chapter 37
(Licensing and Health Departments) which is expected for July.

Mr. Harris also stated that he would like to fill the vacancies in the DSIWM management
positions and plans on posting the positions in the near future. 

QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS FOR STATE PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS

Andrew Booker, Ohio EPA, Ch. I Introduction, Ch. III Goals, and Ch. VII Tires
Andrew Booker opened the floor to comments on the draft chapters which had been
handed out and presented at the previous meeting. 

Mr. Canfield asked whether TDF would be focused on more in the draft tire chapter
(Ch. VII) due to the fact that at the Midwest Conference it seemed that Ohio was
lagging behind on this topic.  Mr. Booker explained that additional information had been
added to the chapter recently (p. 6-7) and that more emphasis would be placed on TDF
in the market development chapter (Ch. IX).   

Mr. Harris mentioned some of the projects involving TDF which had taken place in
Ohio. Several questions regarding these projects were asked and there was a brief
discussion about problems with the projects and companies involved.

Mr. Booker specifically addressed the goal for the evaluation of economic incentives
(Goal #6 from Ch. III) which was discussed extensively at the previous meeting. Mr.
Booker provided draft language that would be included in the Format and the State
Plan to show how it would be changed to meet the goal’s requirements. Ohio EPA
received feedback from SWMDs and OSWDO representatives on the draft language
and Mr. Booker stated that they seem to be comfortable with the goal. Mr. Booker was
prepared to discuss this issue in detail. However, there was no need for this identified
by SWAC members.   

Mr. Madden asked whether the word “mandatory” could be changed in the introductions
to Chapter III. Mr. Booker explained that it was quoted directly from the statute and as a
result, could not be changed. 

Logistics
Mr. Booker also reminded the members that as of the conclusion of the meeting all of
the chapters in the State Plan has been discussed.  SWAC will be presented with a 
complete draft document prior to the next meeting. At that meeting, Ohio EPA will seek
a formal motion to release the document for the public comment period which is
expected to be held from July to August. After the 30 day public comment period, five
public hearings will be held in the Ohio EPA district offices. Mr. Booker requested that
at lease one SWAC member from the various regions attend the hearing nearest to
them. 

Mr. Booker said that SWAC members should receive a hard copy of the document by
next week which leaves little time before the next meeting on June 27. Therefore,
members are encouraged to read the document prior to this. Mr. Booker also
emphasized that a quorum would be required at the next meeting and to contact Britt



3SWAC Summary Minutes, June 12, 2001

Bowe if anyone is unable to attend.

Bob Large, Ohio EPA, Update on Tire Data
Mr. Large presented numerical and historical data on tire flows including disposal,
generation, and recycling. He explained that the purpose of the presentation is to
provide information and that no actions or decisions would be made at this meeting. 

Mr. Large presented data from 1987 and how the 1989 State Plan addressed the
issues through various objectives. He continued to explain the requirements of the
scrap tire law which was adopted in 1993. Some of the problems with the law were that
many of the key words were not defined resulting in misinterpretation. 

Mr. Large continued his presentation to explain the rules for 1996 and the draft rules
which were filed in February, 2001. These rules will be refiled in March, 2002. The
addition of a definition for “tire derived chip” was one of the important changes made to
the rule. 

Information about neighboring states was acquired through the Midwestern Conference
and was presented to the SWAC members. The neighboring states only ban whole tires
from landfills and do not have monofills/monocells (although a few other states in other
parts of the country have monofills). Many of the neighboring states provide markets for
Ohio scrap tires, and 3,000,000 passenger tire equivalents (PTE) were exported in
2000. 

The annual reports for scrap tires show an increase in the amount of tires collected
since 1997 with 71% of tires recovered. A comparison between data from 1987 and
2000 shows that a decrease in tires landfilled and unaccounted for has occurred.
Beneficial use and recycling/recovery has increased, although the different surveys may
have defined these terms differently, which would skew this information. 

A brief update on the status of the Kirby site’s abatement and clean-up was discussed.
Mr. Booker asked what the expected time line would be now with the increase in the tire
fee. Mr. Large estimated that it will take another ten years to complete the process. Mr.
Palumbo asked who owns the property and what will become of it after the clean-up.
Mr. Harris explained that EPA is in litigation now to resolve this issue and eventually, it
is possible that the property will be sold to regain some of the expenses of the clean-up. 

Several questions were asked regarding the information presented, ranging from types
of tires, retreading, research, safety, and beneficial uses (including backfill and septic
sytems). Mr. Canfield asked whether tire chips can be used for daily cover on landfills
and Mr. Large answered that it’s not allowed due to flammability and that a lightning fire
had occurred earlier this year at Suburban Landfill in Newark. Ms. Trent asked whether
the draft tire chapter could be updated to include the information which had been
presented.

STATE PLAN CHAPTER UPDATES

Ernie Stall, Ohio EPA, Ch. II Implementing the 1995 State Plan
Mr. Stall explained that the information included in the chapter has been presented in



4SWAC Summary Minutes, June 12, 2001

the past to the SWAC members. The presentation included a comparison of data for
the years between the update of the State Plan. Information from the 1998 State Plan
Progress Report was included in the presentation as well as data from 1999 and 2000.  

An update of the progress made towards achieving the 7 goals and 8 strategies
established in the 1995 State Plan was presented and discussed in the draft
implementation chapter. The programs and problems which were introduced and
encountered have also been addressed in the chapter. Mr. Stall presented information
for the recycling rates and reasons why they have increased or fluctuated. Mr. Stall also
explained how he presented the progress of the education goals and the remaining
goals through program descriptions and relevant data in the draft chapter.

Mr. Biggs asked if there was a specific reason why the industrial recycling/reduction
rate had decreased for many districts with few increasing. Mr. Stall answered that there
are many possibilities but commonly, the reason is due to lack of response to industry
surveys. Steve Hill, representative for industrial generators, clarified that many more
districts increased than decreased and that it mirrored the residential/commercial rates

Ms. Trent asked about the annual district reporting goal and how the process had been
modified recently to generate better information and compliance with the districts. Mr.
Booker explained that the form is now tailored according to the implementation table of
the plan submitted to the EPA. Ms. Trent suggested that issuing NOV letters to districts
doesn’t necessarily increase compliance and asked whether there was a better form of
evaluation or if SWAC could improve this issue. Mr. Booker responded that he is open
to suggestions, although the deadline for submission of annual district reports has
never been changed since the inception of the program and therefore districts should
have ample opportunity to complete it on time.

Ms. Trent also suggested that the draft chapter of the State Plan be adjusted to
summarize the individual goals using bullet points rather than lengthy text. Mr. Stall and
Mr. Booker agreed that this idea was good; however, the short time frame may not
allow major changes such as this.

Andrew Booker, Ch. IX Market Development
Mr. Booker presented the changes and new information for the market development
draft chapter of the State Plan. The background section of the chapter was added as
well as an update from the recommendations of 1995 State Plan and new strategies for
the future. 

Mr. Booker used data from local SWMDs to show the volatility of recycling markets and
how the data from Ohio correlated with data from Puget Sound, Washington. The issue
of supply versus demand of certain materials was discussed.

An update on SWMD programs was presented as well as state strategies that may be
implemented.  Mr. Booker focused on strategies related to TDF, FGD, state agency
procurement, electronics, glass, and plastic market development. The strategies
address the need to examine and research possible uses and barriers which may
influence market development or supply and demand.



5SWAC Summary Minutes, June 12, 2001

Mr. Canfield discussed some of ODNR’s market development initiatives was
responsible for related to electronics, as well as a toll free number for residents to call
for recycling information. He stated that soon the website will use GIS mapping for more
comprehensive local recycling information for residents. In addition, Mr. Canfield also
encouraged SWAC members to support Governor Taft’s executive order which would
encourage state agency procurement of recycled materials. Mr. Booker commented
that a follow-up on the current status of state agency procurement of recycled content
materials would be researched and discussed at an upcoming SWAC meeting. Mr.
Rininger asked if this would be an agenda item for the next meeting and Mr. Booker
suggested to wait until after the State Plan had been finalized and adopted.  

Mr. Biggs suggested adding an education element to encourage state agencies to
accurately record and count recycled content materials currently being purchased. 

Mr. Hill also had a concern about a reference to possible mandatory reporting
requirements for industrial generators which was part of the strategies included in the
draft goals chapter. He explained that it is burdensome and difficult for generators to
provide this information. Mr. Booker stated that the intent of the strategy was to explore
all methods of reporting by generators, and that mandatory requirements were just one
of several options to explore. Mr. Canfield asked what the barriers were, and Mr. Hill
explained the complexity of the information requests. He continued to say that there are
35 different categories that his company reports on and this detail is not always
possible to provide, which may result in more problems due to poor data. He suggested
a more simple form to increase the participation rate of industry surveys. 

Ms. Trent also added that haulers also have difficulty with the complicated information
requests. Mr. Rininger added that many small companies may not report to the EPA to
avoid future complications with possible lawsuits. Mr. Booker suggested that the
confidentiality issue would have to be considered if the requirement were mandatory.

Ms. Trent asked whether an executive summary would be added to the State Plan. Mr.
Stall commented that there wasn’t an executive summary for the 1995 State Plan and
the executive summary for the 1989 State Plan was a separate document created after
it was adopted. Mr. Stall indicated that there may not be enough time to add one now.
Ms. Trent suggested that it might be developed during the public comment period and
public hearings. 

Agenda Items for June 27th, 2001 Meeting

Potential agenda items discussed:

1. Draft state plan
2. Public comment and public hearings
3. Revisit market development chapter for comments and questions



6SWAC Summary Minutes, June 12, 2001

Respectfully submitted:                                                                                              
                 Erv Ball, Vice Chair

Minutes approved on:                                                                                                 

Certified by:                                                                                                               
Kathy Trent, Secretary


